

a. *Access to Information (54 U.S.C. 307103)*: BOEM may, after consultation with the Secretary of the Interior, withhold the location, character, or ownership of historic properties if the Secretary and BOEM determine that disclosure may, among other things, cause a significant invasion of privacy, risk harm to the historic resources, or impede the use of a traditional religious site by practitioners. Tribes and other interested parties should designate such information that they wish to be withheld as confidential and provide the reasons why BOEM should do so.

Authority: 43 U.S.C. 1337(p); 30 CFR 585.211 and 585.216.

Elizabeth Klein,

Director, Bureau of Ocean Energy Management.

[FR Doc. 2024–09390 Filed 4–30–24; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4340–98–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1341]

Certain Video Processing Devices and Products Containing the Same; Notice of a Commission Determination To Review in Part a Final Initial Determination, and on Review, To Find No Violation of Section 337; Termination of the Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission (“Commission”) has determined to review the Administrative Law Judge’s (“ALJ”) final initial determination (“ID”), issued on February 5, 2024, and on review, to find no violation of section 337 in the above-referenced investigation. This investigation is terminated.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Benjamin S. Richards, Esq., Office of the General Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 708–5453. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this investigation may be viewed on the Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at <https://www.usitc.gov>. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the

Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 205–1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on November 29, 2022, based on a complaint filed on behalf of VideoLabs, Inc. of Palo Alto, California (“VideoLabs”). 87 FR 73329 (Nov. 29, 2022). The complaint, as supplemented, alleges violations of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain video processing devices and products containing the same by reason of infringement of claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 7,769,238 (“the ’238 patent”), 8,139,878 (“the ’878 patent”), and 8,208,542 (“the ’542 patent”). *Id.* The complaint further alleges that a domestic industry exists. *Id.* The Commission’s notice of investigation named as the sole respondent HP Inc. of Palo Alto, California (“HP”). *Id.* The Office of Unfair Import Investigations is not participating in the investigation. *Id.*

On July 27, 2023, and August 25, 2023, the ALJ issued Order No. 20 and Order No. 23, respectively, granting VideoLabs’ motions to terminate the investigation with regards to the ’238 patent and the ’878 patent. Order No. 20 (July 11, 2023), *unreviewed by Comm’n* Notice (July 27, 2023); Order No. 23 (Aug. 7, 2023), *unreviewed by Comm’n* Notice (Aug. 25, 2023). Accordingly, the ’542 patent is the sole remaining patent at issue.

The ALJ held a *Markman* hearing on June 7, 2023. On September 22, 2023, the ALJ issued Order No. 27, in which the ALJ construed certain claim terms while reserving construction of other terms until after the evidentiary hearing due to underlying fact issues. *See* Order No. 27 (Sept. 22, 2023).

The ALJ held an evidentiary hearing from October 23–26, 2023. The parties filed their post-hearing opening briefs and replies on November 13, 2023, and November 29, 2023, respectively.

On February 5, 2024, the ALJ issued the final ID in this investigation, which found no violation of section 337 as to any of the asserted claims of the ’542 patent.

On February 20, 2024, VideoLabs petitioned for review of the final ID. On February 28, 2024, HP filed a response opposing VideoLabs’ petition.

On March 25, 2024, the Commission determined to extend the date by which it must determine whether to review the final ID to April 25, 2024.

Having examined the record of this investigation, including the ID, the

petition for review, and the response thereto, the Commission has determined not to review and thus adopts, the ID’s claim construction findings and the ID’s finding that the asserted claims are invalid as indefinite. Those findings are sufficient to support the ID’s ultimate finding of no violation of section 337, which the Commission also adopts. Given the finding that the asserted claims are indefinite, the Commission cannot conduct a complete analysis of the other issues raised in this investigation, *e.g.*, infringement, obviousness, and domestic industry. Accordingly, the Commission has determined to review the remaining findings in the ID and on review take no position on those findings. This investigation is terminated.

The Commission vote for this determination took place on April 25, 2024.

The authority for the Commission’s determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 210 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: April 25, 2024.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2024–09362 Filed 4–30–24; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation Nos. 701–TA–688 and 731–TA–1612–1613 and 1615–1617 (Final)]

Brass Rod From Brazil, India, Mexico, South Africa, and South Korea; Scheduling of the Final Phase of the Antidumping and Countervailing Duty Investigations

AGENCY: United States International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

DATES: April 22, 2024

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Julie Duffy ((202) 708–2579), Office of Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436. Hearing-impaired persons can obtain information on this matter by contacting the Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 205–1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at (202) 205–2000. General information concerning the

Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server (<https://www.usitc.gov>). The public record for these investigations may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Effective September 29, 2023, the Commission established a general schedule for the conduct of the final phase of its investigations on brass rod from Brazil, India, Israel, Mexico, South Africa, and South Korea¹ following preliminary determinations by the U.S. Department of Commerce ("Commerce") that imports of brass rod from India, Israel, and South Korea were being subsidized by the governments of India, Israel, and South Korea.² Notice of the scheduling of the final phase of the Commission's investigations and of a public hearing to be held in connection therewith was given by posting copies of the notice in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, Washington, DC, and by publishing the notice in the **Federal Register** on October 5, 2023 (88 FR 69229). All persons who requested the opportunity were permitted to appear in person or by counsel.

The Commission subsequently issued its final determination that an industry in the United States is materially injured by reason of imports of brass rod from India that have been found by Commerce to be subsidized by the government of India.³ On April 22, 2024, Commerce issued its final affirmative determinations that imports of brass rod from Brazil, India, Mexico, South Africa, and South Korea were being sold at less than fair value in the United States, and that imports of brass rod from South Korea were being subsidized by the government of South Korea.⁴ Accordingly, the Commission currently is issuing a supplemental schedule for its antidumping duty investigations on imports of brass rod from Brazil, India, Mexico, South Africa, and South Korea and countervailing duty investigation on imports of brass rod from South Korea.

This supplemental schedule is as follows: the deadline for filing supplemental party comments on Commerce's final antidumping and countervailing duty determinations is 5:15 p.m. on May 3, 2024. Supplemental party comments may address only

Commerce's final antidumping duty determinations regarding imports of brass rod from Brazil, India, Mexico, South Africa, and South Korea and countervailing duty determination regarding imports of brass rod from South Korea. These supplemental final comments may not contain new factual information and may not exceed five (5) pages in length. The supplemental staff report in the final phase of these investigations regarding subject imports from Brazil, India, Mexico, South Africa, and South Korea will be placed in the nonpublic record on May 15, 2024; and a public version will be issued thereafter.

For further information concerning these investigations see the Commission's notice cited above and the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, part 201, subparts A and B (19 CFR part 201), and part 207, subparts A and C (19 CFR part 207).

All written submissions must conform with the provisions of § 201.8 of the Commission's rules; any submissions that contain BPI must also conform with the requirements of §§ 201.6, 207.3, and 207.7 of the Commission's rules. The Commission's *Handbook on Filing Procedures*, available on the Commission's website at https://www.usitc.gov/documents/handbook_on_filing_procedures.pdf, elaborates upon the Commission's procedures with respect to filings.

Additional written submissions to the Commission, including requests pursuant to section 201.12 of the Commission's rules, shall not be accepted unless good cause is shown for accepting such submissions, or unless the submission is pursuant to a specific request by a Commissioner or Commission staff.

In accordance with sections 201.16(c) and 207.3 of the Commission's rules, each document filed by a party to the investigation must be served on all other parties to the investigation (as identified by either the public or BPI service list), and a certificate of service must be timely filed. The Secretary will not accept a document for filing without a certificate of service.

Authority: This proceeding is being conducted under authority of title VII of the Tariff Act of 1930; this notice is published pursuant to section 207.21 of the Commission's rules.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: April 26, 2024.

Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2024-09383 Filed 4-30-24; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation Nos. 701-TA-603-604 and 731-TA-1413-1415 (Review)]

Glycine From China, India, Japan, and Thailand; Institution of a Five-Year Review

AGENCY: United States International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Commission hereby gives notice that it has instituted a review pursuant to the Tariff Act of 1930 ("the Act"), as amended, to determine whether revocation of the countervailing duty and antidumping duty orders on glycine from China, India, Japan, and Thailand would be likely to lead to continuation or recurrence of material injury. Pursuant to the Act, interested parties are requested to respond to this notice by submitting the information specified below to the Commission.

DATES: Instituted May 1, 2024. To be assured of consideration, the deadline for responses is May 31, 2024. Comments on the adequacy of responses may be filed with the Commission by July 9, 2024.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Alexis Yim (202-708-1446), Office of Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436. Hearing-impaired persons can obtain information on this matter by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on 202-205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at 202-205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server (<https://www.usitc.gov>). The public record for this proceeding may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at <https://edis.usitc.gov>.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background.—On June 21, 2019, the Department of Commerce ("Commerce") issued countervailing duty orders on imports of glycine from China and India (84 FR 29173). On June 21, 2019, Commerce issued antidumping duty orders on imports of glycine from India and Japan (84 FR 29170). On October 18, 2019, Commerce issued an antidumping duty order on imports of glycine from Thailand (84 FR 55912). The Commission is conducting reviews pursuant to section 751(c) of the Act, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1675(c)), to

¹ 88 FR 69229, October 5, 2023.

² 88 FR 67239, 88 FR 67240, and 88 FR 867233, September 29, 2023.

³ 89 FR 8440, February 7, 2024.

⁴ 89 FR 29303, 89 FR 29300, 89 FR 29305, 89 FR 29292, 89 FR 29298, and 89 FR 29290, April 22, 2024.